

Recommendation on the inclusion of student organizations in the 2023-2026 Graduation Fund

Central Executive Board for Student Organizations (CUOS) March 2023

1. Foreword

Dear Board of the University, dear reader,

This document contains the recommendation from the Central Executive Board for Student Organizations (CUOS: *Centraal Uitvoeringsorgaan voor de Studentenorganisaties*) with regard to the inclusion of student organizations in the University of Groningen Graduation Fund Regulations for the period 2023-2026. This year, the student organizations in the category of study associations have been re-evaluated. This document also includes several recommendations with regard to applications from organizations that fall within the categories of 'sports' and 'other' and which were not yet included in the Graduation Fund Regulations but submitted a request for inclusion in the course of this year.

In this recommendation, study associations are structurally allocated fewer committee grant months than recommended in their previous assessment. This decrease is the result of the revised model based on which study associations were assessed for the first time this year. Unlike in the previous model, committee grant months can no longer be earned simply by satisfying the general and specific conditions. In the new model, points can only be earned on the basis of the additional months via the specific assessment. The CUOS felt that the results insufficiently reflected the actual administrative burden that the organizations were confronted with. In consultation with the ABJZ department, it was therefore decided to assess the organizations under the current assessment model but with a minimal change. Instead of making interim changes to the assessment model, the CUOS recommended awarding a fixed number of extra committee grant months to each study association. The Board of the University has adopted this recommendation. The results of the assessment are thus mitigated somewhat. More information can be found in Appendix A. The next chapters provide an overview of all the applications and assessments, and the methods used by the CUOS. Chapter 4 subsequently explains the evaluation of each organization in detail.

Sincerely,

Myrthe Bekkers Andrea Gačević Jorrit Top Mayke Kamphuis Hannah Müllers (Chair)
(Secretary)
(Treasurer)
(Board member for Accommodation)
(Board member for PR & Communication)

Contents

1. Foreword	1
2. Overview of organizations	4
3. Working method	6
3.1 Legal framework	6
3.2 Information provision	6
3.3 Applications	6
3.4 Member lists, student numbers, and privacy	7
3.5 Assessment	7
3.5.1 Study associations	7
3.5.2 Sports clubs	10
3.5.3 Influence of COVID-19 on the assessment	10
APPENDIX A: Compensation for the reassessment model for study associations	11
4. CUOS recommendation for inclusion of study associations in the Graduation Fund	
Regulations	12
4.1 Atmos Groningen	12
4.2 Caerus	13
4.3 Clio	13 14
4.5 Cho 4.4 Commotie	14 15
4.5 Cover	15 16
4.5 Cover 4.6 De Chemische Binding	
4.7 Diephuis	17 18
4.8 EBF	19
4.9 EPU	20
4.10 Esperia	21
4.11 FMF	22
4.12 GFE	23
4.13 GHD Ubbo Emmius	24
4.14 G.L.V. Idun	25
4.15 Het S.G.O.R.	26
4.16 Ibn Battuta	27
4.17 JFV Groningen	28
4.18 LISA	29
4.19 MARUG	30
4.20 M.F.V. Panacea	31
4.21 ODIOM	32
4.22 Pharmaciae Sacrum	33
4.23 Siduri	34
4.24 Simon van der Aa	35
4.25 Sirius A	36
4.26 Sociëtas	37
4.27 Studiosi Mobilae	38
4.28 T.B.V. Lugus	39
4.29 T.F.M.V. Archigenes	40
4.30 T.F.V. Professor Francken	41
4.31 TeMa Study Association	42
4.32 VESTING	43

4.33 Vevonos	44
4.34 VIP	45
4.35 ZaZa	46
5. CUOS recommendation for inclusion of sports clubs in the Graduation Fund	
Regulations	47
5.1 De Groene Uilen-Moestasj	47
5.2 G.S.A.V.V. Forward	48
5.3 G.S.B.V. Tweeslag	49
6. CUOS recommendation for exclusion from the Graduation Fund Regulations	50
6.1 ASCI	50
6.2 G.S.H.C. Forward	51
6.3 G.T.D. Bernoulli	51
6.4 Study Association IK	52
6.5 MESA	54
6.6 Nexus	55
6.7 STUFF	56
6.8 S.V. NUTS	57
6.9 UniPartners	58

2. Overview of organizations

Study		of committee	For th	e academi	c years
	grant mon				
	~	CUOS	<u>'23-</u>	'24-'25	25-'26
association	Current	recommend ation	'24		
ASCI	6				
		0	X	v	v
Atmos	0	8	X X	X	X
Caerus	12	8	X X	X	X
Clio	28	33		X	X
Commotie	20	17	X	X	X
Cover	30	21	X	X	X
De Chemische Binding	28	25	X	X	X
Diephuis	7	9	X	X	X
EBF	40	40	X	X	X
EPU	7	8	X	X	X
Esperia	6	9	X	X	X
FMF	24	28	X	X	X
GFE	6	17	X	X	X
GHD Ubbo Emmius	24	25	X	X	X
GLV Idun	36	35	X	X	X
G.T.D. Bernoulli	12	0			
Het S.G.O.R.	12	12	X	X	X
Ibn Battuta	24	24	X	X	X
IK	12	0			
JFV	38	40	X	X	X
LISA	12	14	X	X	X
MARUG	26	23	X	X	X
MESA	0	0			
M.F.V. Panacea	40	40	X	X	X
Nexus	0	0			
ODIOM	20	25	X	X	X
Pharmaciae Sacrum	32	30	X	X	X
S.V. NUTS	0	0			
Siduri	0	8	X	X	X
Simon van der Aa	12	9	X	X	X
Sirius A	6	8	X	X	X
Sociëtas	16	17	X	X	X
Studiosi Mobilae	24	36	X	X	X
STUFF	12	0			
T.B.V. Lugus			X	X	X
	34	31	X		
T.M.F.V. Archigenes T.F.V. Professor Francken	20	19	X X		X X
	24	19			
TeMa	18	23	X	X	X
VESTING	32	28	X	X	X
Vevonos	6	8	X	X	X
VIP	32	29	X	X	X

ZaZa	6	11	Х	Х	Х

Sports					
	Number of committee grant months		For the	academi	c years
association	Current	CUOS recommend ation	'23- '24	'2 4-'25	'2 5-' 26
De Groene Uilen- Moestasj	19	16	X	X	
G.S.A.V.V. Forward	0	13	X	X	
G.S.B.V. Tweeslag	0	16	X		
G.S.H.C. Forward	0	0			

Other					
association	Number of c months	for the a	academic	years	
	Current	Recommenda tion from CUOS	'23-'24	'24-'25	'2 5 -'26
UniPartners	0	0			

3.Working method

3.1 Legal framework

As part of the task set out in the CUOS Regulations of advising the Board of the University on the inclusion of organizations in the Graduation Fund, the CUOS has drawn up this report within the frameworks of policy and finance. The applications were assessed in accordance with Part B of the UG Graduation Fund Regulations 2022-2023 (hereinafter referred to as the Regulations), Appendix 1 in particular, and the Framework for the Support of Student Organizations and University Bodies (hereinafter referred to as the Framework). The CUOS is keen to stress that none of the board members involved in the substantive assessment are or have been members of an organization or are closely involved in an organization in other ways.

3.2 Information provision

In September, the organizations to be re-evaluated received an information email containing all the necessary information about the procedure. All organizations that in accordance with the cycle were up for re-evaluation this year were also invited to an introductory meeting to inform them of the re-evaluation. In addition, they were also invited to information meetings on 10 October and 19 October 2022. After the information meetings, the presentation containing the explanation of the application procedure for the Graduation Fund was sent to all those present.

The CUOS was easily accessible in the period leading up to the application deadline. The opportunity to ask questions was widely used by organizations, because the procedure and submission requirements were not clear to everyone. The CUOS made all documents available on the website in both Dutch and English, together with an explanation of the procedure.

3.3 Applications

This year, organizations could apply for inclusion by sending their applications to cuos.aanvraag@rug.nl before 15 November 2022. The applications received were assessed for completeness, after which the secretary replied by email, stating that the application was complete and would be processed. In cases where the application was incomplete, additional documents were requested and organizations were given the opportunity to submit these documents within a reasonable period. Where it was deemed necessary, personal contact was sought with the organization concerned.

In order for the procedure to be as swift and accurate as possible, it was necessary for organizations to submit their documents in time. Unfortunately, a number of organizations did not submit their applications on time and/or in full. The CUOS had a hard deadline, but did show some leniency and gave organizations extra time to complete their applications where necessary.

The CUOS wishes to emphasize that grants for individual committee members can be requested via rug.nl/studievertraging, and that these grants are not paid out via the CUOS.

3.4 Member lists, student numbers, and privacy

The number of registered UG and/or Hanze UAS students is an essential criterion when assessing applications. In connection with privacy legislation, the CUOS only shares student numbers with the student administrations of the UG and Hanze UAS. In addition, the CUOS asks for complete membership lists, in order to assess the general condition of a 'current and complete membership record' (Art. 4d, Appendix 1, Graduation Fund Regulations) and to prevent fraud with student numbers. All member lists will be deleted after completion of the procedure. This has also happened with the membership lists of the past years. Since 2016-2017, it has been emphasized at all information meetings that providing student numbers is essential. The aforementioned can also be found in later information emails and in the shared presentation for this year.

The CUOS emphasizes to all applying organizations that a proper record of correct student numbers is necessary. Students can only be traced in the UG and Hanze UAS records by their student numbers. Members without correct and up-to-date student numbers will therefore not be counted in the assessment. In connection with privacy legislation, it is not possible to communicate to the organizations which of the student numbers submitted are correct and which are not. This was communicated clearly during the information meetings. However, the recommendation does include how many of the student numbers submitted could be verified. In some cases, there are large differences in the correctness of the membership records supplied. In the worst case, a large proportion of the members supplied were not enrolled at either educational institution; in the best case, only a few were not enrolled. Despite these large differences margin prevents organizations from being subjected to the unreasonable requirement of 100% accurate membership records. At the same time, it promotes fairness and coherence in the recommendation issued, as all organizations have to meet the same conditions.

3.5 Assessment

The complete applications have been assessed according to the general and specific conditions as mentioned in Appendix 1 of the Regulations. For an up-to-date and legally binding overview of the assessment criteria, the CUOS refers to the regulations as can be found at rug.nl/cuos. For the sake of readability of this recommendation, the specific conditions for the study association category are briefly outlined below.

3.5.1 Study associations

The UG allocates committee grant months to UG study associations on the basis of the following rules:

1. An association or foundation must organize activities related to its category.

2. A foundation may be granted a maximum of 30 committee grant months.

3. An association or foundation must draw up annual reports in accordance with Form J, for which a maximum of 3 points may be awarded.

4. An association or foundation that meets the general and specific assessment will be granted months on the basis of the following points scheme.

5. A maximum of 10 points may be gained, both in the general and the specific assessment. In addition, extra committee grant months may be awarded per category as described in the specific assessment. 6. An association or foundation must obtain at least 5 points to be included in the Graduation Fund Part B.

The **specific conditions** for a study association are as follows:

1. An association or foundation may be awarded 1.5 points for the organization of annual activities for maintaining and promoting the degree programme's teaching quality throughout the academic year and holding regular meetings with the programme director and/or the faculty board.

2. An association must have at least 75 members. Study associations can also meet this condition if 50% of the total number of students of the related faculty/faculties or degree programme/programmes are annually paying members. The reference date for the submitted list of members is 15 November of the year in which the application is made.

3. An association or foundation may be awarded 5.5 points for the organization of activities on the basis of the following scheme:

Activity	Points
a) Organization of major events, such as an annual conference or symposium.	Max. 1.5
b) Excursions, office and work visits in the Netherlands, excursions abroad, organization of lectures and workshops related to the degree programme.	Max. 2
c) Exceptional participation. Examples include international policy, charitable activities or actively promoting inclusion.	Max. 1
d) A periodical with relevant content or a digital equivalent.	Max. 0.5
e) Activities aimed at promoting member loyalty.	Max. 0.5

Taking the above into account, an organization can thus be awarded a maximum of 10 points on the basis of the following scheme:

Activity	Points
General assessment: The association draws up annual reports, pursues consistent policy, and fulfils a broad supportive role.	Max. 3
Day-to-day activities, committee activities, and activities aimed at promoting member loyalty.	Max. 4
Exceptional participation. Examples include international policy, charitable activities, or actively promoting inclusion.	Max. 1

A periodical or digital equivalent with relevant content, which is published regularly.	Max. 0.5
Annual activities for maintaining and promoting the degree programme's teaching quality and regular meetings with the programme director and/or the faculty board.	Max. 1.5
Total	Max. 10

The number of months based on the points in the above schedule is determined as follows:

Points	Months granted
5 or 5.5 points	4 months
6 points	7 months
6.5 points	10 months
7 points	13 months
7.5 points	16 months
8 points	19 months
8.5 points	22 months
9 points	25 months
9.5 points	28 months
10 points	30 months

Additional months on the basis of membership numbers are subsequently determined as follows:

Number of members	Additional months
50% of the degree programme or 200 members	2 months
450-699	4 months
700-949	6 months
950-1499	8 months
1500 or more	10 months

The above implies that study associations qualify for **a maximum of 40** committee grant months.

3.5.2 Sports clubs

The assessment criteria for sports clubs can also be found in Appendix 1 to the Regulations. The CUOS wishes to emphasize that sports clubs were re-evaluated this year in accordance with the revised model that was approved by the CUOS in 2021-2022. Further compensation for sports clubs is therefore not necessary.

3.5.3 Influence of COVID-19 on the assessment

One of the most important parts of the re-evaluation is the assessment of the organizations' activities. Organizations are assessed, for example, on the excursions, training sessions, symposia, etc. that they organize. During the coronavirus pandemic, many organizations were able to organize significantly fewer activities. An important reason for this were the measures put in place to combat the virus, which often meant that larger activities were no longer allowed. Consequently, many organizations were not able to organize the activities they would have liked to.

In general, an activity must have been organized for at least two of the three years indicated (according to Form D) in order to count for the assessment. The CUOS realizes that in many cases, this was more difficult because recurring activities such as a winter sports trip or conference often had to be cancelled or organized in a different way. For this reason, the CUOS has been lenient once again with the activity list as the CUOS also sees that organizing an activity, despite being cancelled later on, still takes a lot of time and workload.

APPENDIX A: Compensation for the reassessment model for study associations

This year was the first time that study associations were assessed using the above-mentioned assessment model. Despite a lenient assessment within the frameworks of the current model, fewer committee grant months have been awarded to study associations compared to the previous re-evaluation. The explanation for this undesired result is that the threshold to acquire committee grant months is currently higher for associations. In consultation with AJZ it was decided not to change the assessment model at this point in time, as was done for the re-evaluation of sports clubs last year. Nevertheless, the CUOS wished to compensate the great decrease in committee grant month allocation for the study associations. To this end, it was decided to award each study association 2 additional committee grant months. The CUOS feels that this is a fair way of providing proportionate compensation. The number of committee grant months now better reflects the actual administrative burden.

No extra months have been awarded to study associations that had already reached the maximum of 40 committee grant months, nor to sports clubs that were included this year, because they will be re-evaluated again in 2024-2025 according to the cycle and have now been re-evaluated in accordance with the revised model.¹

¹ For more information, see the 2022-2025 Recommendations regarding Graduation Fund.

4. CUOS recommendation for inclusion of study associations in the Graduation Fund Regulations

4.1 Atmos Groningen

Organization

The Atmos Groningen organization:

- falls under the category of study association;
- is NOT included in the current Graduation Fund;
- has a verified membership of 108 (108 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 147 student numbers submitted;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that Atmos Groningen:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 2 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members.
- **Category A:** 0.5 points for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 0 points for organizing excursions, lectures, and workshops
- **Category C**: 0.5 points for exceptional participation in fields such as sustainability and the organization of introductory and alumni activities
- **Category D:** 1.5 points for promoting the quality of teaching through regular consultation with the Faculty Board and organizing activities to promote teaching
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- $\circ~$ The 5 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 4 committee grant months.
- DOES receive a bonus of 2 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund Scheme for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 6 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 8 committee grant months.

4.2 Caerus

Organization

The Caerus organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund Scheme with an allocation of 12 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 283 (283 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 372 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that Caerus:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 2 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members.
- **Category A:** o points for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 0 points for organizing excursions, lectures, and workshops
- **Category C**: 1 point for exceptional participation in fields such as sustainability and the organization of charitable and introductory activities
- **Category D:** 1.5 points for promoting the quality of teaching through regular consultation with the Faculty Board and organizing activities to promote teaching
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- $\circ~$ The 5 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 4 committee grant months.
- DOES receive a bonus of 2 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund Scheme for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 6 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 8 committee grant months.

4.3 Clio

Organization

The Study Association Clio organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund Scheme with an allocation of 28 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 787 (787 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 1072 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that Clio:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 3 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members.
- Category A: 1 point for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 2 points for organizing excursions, lectures, and workshops
- **Category C**: 1 point for exceptional participation in fields such as sustainability and the organization of introductory and alumni activities
- **Category D:** 1.5 points for promoting the quality of teaching through regular consultation with the Faculty Board, organizing activities to promote teaching, and having a relevant association newsletter
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- The 9 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 25 committee grant months.
- DOES receive a bonus of 6 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund Scheme for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 31 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 33 committee grant months.

4.4 Commotie

Organization

The S.V. Commotie organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund with an allocation of 20 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 186 (186 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 258 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that Commotie:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 2.5 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members.
- Category A: 0.5 points for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 1.5 points for organizing excursions, lectures, and workshops
- **Category C**: 0.5 points for exceptional participation in fields such as sustainability and the organization of introductory activities
- **Category D:** 1.5 points for promoting the quality of teaching through regular consultation with the Faculty Board, organizing activities to promote teaching, and having a relevant association newsletter
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- The 7 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 13 committee grant months.
- DOES receive a bonus of 2 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 15 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 17 committee grant months.

4.5 Cover

Organization

The S.V. Cover organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund with an allocation of 30 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 897 (897 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 1016 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that Cover:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 2.5 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members.
- **Category A:** 1 point for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 1.5 points for organizing excursions, lectures, and workshops
- **Category C**: 0.5 points for exceptional participation in fields such as charitable events and the organization of introductory activities
- **Category D:** 1 point for promoting the quality of teaching through regular consultation with the Faculty Board and organizing activities to promote teaching
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- $\circ~$ The 7 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 13 committee grant months.
- $\circ\,$ DOES receive a bonus of 6 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this association SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 19 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 21 committee grant months.

4.6 De Chemische Binding

Organization

The De Chemische Binding organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund Scheme with an allocation of 28 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 514 (514 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 749 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that De Chemische Binding:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 3 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members.
- **Category A:** 1 point for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 1.5 points for organizing excursions, lectures, and workshops
- **Category C**: 0.5 points for exceptional participation in fields such as sustainability, introductory activities, and charitable activities;
- **Category D:** 1.5 points for promoting the quality of teaching through regular consultation with the Faculty Board and organizing activities to promote teaching
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- $\circ~$ The 8 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 19 committee grant months.
- $\circ\,$ DOES receive a bonus of 4 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund Scheme for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 23 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 25 committee grant months.

4.7 Diephuis

Organization

The Civielrechtelijke Vereniging Gerhardus Diephuis (Diephuis) organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund with an allocation of seven committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 143 (143 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 214 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that Gerhardus Diephuis:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 1.5 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members
- **Category A:** 1.5 points for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 1.5 points for organizing excursions, lectures, and workshops
- **Category C**: o points for exceptional participation
- **Category D:** 1 point for publishing a periodical with relevant content and promoting the quality of teaching through regular consultation with the Faculty Board
- **Category E:** 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- $\circ~$ The 6 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 7 committee grant months.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 7 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 9 committee grant months.

4.8 EBF

Organization

The Economische en Bedrijfskundige Faculteitsvereniging (EBF) organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund with an allocation of 40 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 4476 (4476 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 5110 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that EBF:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 3 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members.
- **Category A:** 1.5 points for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 2 points for organizing excursions, lectures, and workshops
- **Category C:** 1 point for exceptional participation in fields such as sustainability and the organization of introductory and alumni activities
- **Category D:** 2 points for promoting the quality of teaching through regular consultation with the Faculty Board, organizing activities to promote teaching, and having a relevant association newsletter
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- $\circ~$ The 10 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 30 committee grant months.
- $\circ\,$ DOES receive a bonus of 10 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund Scheme for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 40 committee grant months. This organization is receiving the maximum number of committee grant months for study associations and is therefore not eligible for the additional 2 compensatory months.

4.9 EPU

Organization

The E Pluribus Unum (EPU) organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund with an allocation of seven committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 99 (98 UG + 1 Hanze UAS) out of the 119 submitted student numbers
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that E Pluribus Unum:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 2 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members.
- **Category A:** 0.5 points for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 0.5 points for organizing excursions
- **Category C**: 0.5 points for exceptional participation in fields such as the organization of introductory activities
- **Category D:** 1.5 points for publishing a periodical with relevant content, promoting the quality of teaching through regular consultation with the Faculty Board, and organizing activities to promote teaching
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- The 5.5 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 4 committee grant months.
- $\circ\,$ DOES receive a bonus of 2 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund Scheme for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 6 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 8 committee grant months.

4.10 Esperia

Organization

The S.V. Esperia organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund with an allocation of 6 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 165 (165 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 195 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that Esperia:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 1.5 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members
- **Category A:** 0 points for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 1 point for organizing excursions and lectures
- **Category C**: 1 point for exceptional participation in fields such as introductory activities for first-year students and the organization of charitable activities
- **Category D:** 2 points for a periodical with relevant content and promotion of teaching quality through regular consultation with the faculty board;
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities;
- The 6 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 7 committee grant months.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 7 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 9 committee grant months.

4.11 FMF

Organization

The Fysisch-Mathematische Faculteitsvereniging (FMF) organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund Scheme with an allocation of 24 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 616 (616 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 879 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that FMF:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 3 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members.
- **Category A:** 1 point for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 1 point for organizing lectures and workshops
- **Category C**: 1 point for exceptional participation in fields such as paying special attention to inclusion, organizing introductory activities, and paying attention to alumni
- **Category D:** 2 points for publishing a periodical with relevant content and promoting the quality of teaching through regular consultation with the Faculty Board
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- $\circ~$ The 8.5 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 22 committee grant months.
- DOES receive a bonus of 4 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 26 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 28 committee grant months.

4.12 GFE

Organization

The Groninger Fiscale Eenheid (GFE) organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund with an allocation of 6 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 249 (249 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 418 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that GFE:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 2 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members.
- **Category A:** 1.5 points for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 1.5 points for organizing excursions and workshops
- **Category C**: 0.5 points for exceptional participation in fields such as introductory activities and attention to alumni
- **Category D:** 1 point for promoting the quality of teaching, for example through regular consultation with the VOG
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- $\circ~$ The 7 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 13 committee grant months.
- $\circ\,$ DOES receive a bonus of 2 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 15 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 17 committee grant months.

4.13 GHD Ubbo Emmius

Organization

The GHD Ubbo Emmius organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund Scheme with an allocation of 24 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 527 (527 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 864 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that GHD Ubbo Emmius:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 3 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members.
- **Category A:** 1 point for organizing big events
- Category B: 1.5 points for organizing excursions, lectures, and workshops
- **Category C**: 0.5 points for exceptional participation in fields such as sustainability and the organization of introductory activities
- **Category D:** 1.5 points for publishing a periodical with relevant content and promoting the quality of teaching through regular consultation with the Faculty Board
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- $\circ~$ The 8 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 19 committee grant months.
- $\circ\,$ DOES receive a bonus of 4 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund Scheme for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 23 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 25 committee grant months.

4.14 G.L.V. Idun

Organization

The G.L.V. Idun organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund Scheme with an allocation of 36 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 1396 (1396 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 1645 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that G.L.V. Idun:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 3 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members.
- **Category A:** 0.5 points for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 2 points for organizing excursions, lectures, and workshops
- **Category C**: 1 point for exceptional participation in fields such as sustainability and the organization of charitable, introductory, and alumni activities
- **Category D:** 2 points for publishing a periodical with relevant content, promoting the quality of teaching through regular consultation with the Faculty Board and other study associations, and organizing activities to promote teaching
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- The 9 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 25 committee grant months.
- DOES receive a bonus of 8 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 33 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 35 committee grant months.

4.15 Het S.G.O.R.

Organization

The Het S.G.O.R. organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund Scheme with an allocation of 12 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 198 (198 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 262 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that Het S.G.O.R.

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 2 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members.
- Category A: 1 point for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 1.5 points for organizing excursions and workshops
- **Category C**: 0.5 points for exceptional participation in fields such as the organization of charitable and alumni activities
- **Category D:** 1 point for publishing a periodical with relevant content and promoting the quality of teaching through the organization of activities to promote teaching
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- $\circ~$ The 6.5 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 10 committee grant months.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund Scheme for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 10 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 12 committee grant months.

4.16 Ibn Battuta

Organization

The Faculty Association Ibn Battuta organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund Scheme with an allocation of 24 committee grant months;
- has a verified membership of 802 (802 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 1092 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that Ibn Battuta:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 2.5 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members.
- **Category A:** 1.5 points for organizing big events
- Category B: 1 point for organizing excursions and lectures
- **Category C**: 0.5 points for exceptional participation in fields such as sustainability and the organization of introductory activities
- **Category D:** 1.5 points for publishing a periodical with relevant content and promoting the quality of teaching through regular consultation with the Faculty Board
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- $\circ~$ The 7.5 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 16 committee grant months.
- $\circ\,$ DOES receive a bonus of 6 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 22 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 24 committee grant months.

4.17 JFV Groningen

Organization

The Juridische Faculteitsvereniging Groningen (JFV) organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund Scheme with an allocation of 38 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 2465 (2465 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 3063 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that JFV Groningen:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 2.5 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members.
- **Category A:** 1.5 points for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 2 points for organizing excursions, lectures, and workshops
- **Category C:** 1 point for exceptional participation in fields such as sustainability and the organization of charitable and introductory activities
- **Category D:** 2 points for publishing a periodical with relevant content, promoting the quality of teaching through regular consultation with the Faculty Board and other study associations, organizing activities to promote teaching, and maintaining their own study shop
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- $\circ~$ The 9.5 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 28 committee grant months.
- DOES receive a bonus of 10 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 38 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 40 committee grant months.

4.18 LISA

Organization

The Law & ICT Student Association (LISA) organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund Scheme with an allocation of 12 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 259 (259 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 359 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that LISA:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 2 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members.
- **Category A:** 1.5 points for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 1 point for organizing excursions and workshops
- **Category C**: 0.5 points for exceptional participation in fields such as the organization of charitable, introductory, and alumni activities
- **Category D:** 1 point for publishing a periodical with relevant content, promoting the quality of teaching through regular consultation with the Faculty Board and other associations, and organizing activities to promote teaching
- **Category E:** 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- $\circ~$ The 6.5 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 10 committee grant months.
- DOES receive a bonus of 2 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 12 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 14 committee grant months.

4.19 MARUG

Organization

The Marketing Association of the University of Groningen (MARUG) organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund Scheme with an allocation of 26 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 410 (410 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 562 student numbers submitted;
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that MARUG:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 2.5 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members.
- **Category A:** 1.5 points for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 1.5 points for organizing excursions and workshops
- **Category C**: 1 point for exceptional participation in fields such as sustainability and the organization of introductory and alumni activities
- **Category D:** 1 point for promoting the quality of teaching through regular consultation with the Faculty Board and organizing activities to promote teaching
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- $\circ~$ The 8 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 19 committee grant months.
- $\circ\,$ DOES receive a bonus of 2 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 21 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 23 committee grant months.

4.20 M.F.V. Panacea

Organization

The M.F.V. Panacea organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund with an allocation of 40 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 2774 (2774 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 3565 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that M.F.V. Panacea:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 3 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members.
- **Category A:** 1.5 points for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 2 points for organizing excursions, lectures, and workshops
- **Category C**: 1 point for exceptional participation in fields such as sustainability, the organization of introductory activities, and having a charitable committee
- **Category D:** 2 points for publishing a periodical with relevant content, promoting the quality of teaching through regular consultation with the Faculty Board, and organizing activities to promote teaching
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- $\circ~$ The 10 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 30 committee grant months.
- DOES receive a bonus of 10 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund Scheme for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 40 committee grant months. This organization is receiving the maximum number of committee grant months for study associations and is therefore not eligible for the additional 2 compensatory months.

4.21 ODIOM

Organization

The ODIOM organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund with an allocation of 20 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 697 (697 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 815 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that ODIOM:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 3 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members.
- **Category A:** 1 point for organizing big events
- Category B: 1 point for organizing excursions and lectures
- **Category C**: 1 points for exceptional participation in fields such as the organization of charitable and alumni activities
- **Category D:** 1.5 points for publishing a periodical with relevant content, promoting the quality of teaching through regular consultation with the Faculty Board, and organizing activities to promote teaching
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- $\circ~$ The 8 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 19 committee grant months.
- $\circ\,$ DOES receive a bonus of 4 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund Scheme for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 23 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 25 committee grant months.

4.22 Pharmaciae Sacrum

Organization

The G.F.S.V. Pharmaciae Sacrum organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund Scheme with an allocation of 32 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 836 (836 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 957 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that Pharmaciae Sacrum:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 2.5 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members.
- **Category A:** 1.5 points for organizing big events
- Category B: 1.5 points for organizing excursions, lectures, and workshops
- **Category C**: 0.5 points for exceptional participation in fields such as the organization of introductory and alumni activities
- **Category D:** 2 points for promoting the quality of teaching through regular consultation with the Faculty Board and organizing activities to promote teaching, such as a tutoring platform
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- $\circ~$ The 8.5 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 22 committee grant months.
- $\circ\,$ DOES receive a bonus of 6 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund Scheme for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 28 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 30 committee grant months.

4.23 Siduri

Organization

The Siduri organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- is NOT included in the current Graduation Fund
- has a verified membership of 55 (55 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 72 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that Siduri:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 2.5 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members.
- **Category A:** 0 points for the lack of big events being organized
- **Category B:** 1 point for organizing lectures and workshops
- **Category C**: 0.5 points for exceptional participation in fields such as introductory activities and language development
- **Category D:** 0.5 points for promoting the quality of teaching through the organization of activities to promote teaching
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- $\circ~$ The 5 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 4 committee grant months.
- $\circ\,$ DOES receive a bonus of 2 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund Scheme for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 6 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 8 committee grant months.

4.24 Simon van der Aa

Organization

The Simon van der Aa organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund Scheme with an allocation of 12 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 175 (175 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 280 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that Simon van der Aa:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 1 point for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members
- **Category A:** 1.5 points for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 1.5 points for organizing excursions, lectures, and workshops
- **Category C**: 0.5 points for exceptional participation in fields such as the organization of introductory and alumni activities
- **Category D:** 1 point for publishing a periodical with relevant content and organizing activities to promote teaching
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- $\circ~$ The 6 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 7 committee grant months.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 7 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 9 committee grant months.

4.25 Sirius A

Organization

The Sirius A organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund with an allocation of 6 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 284 (284 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 349 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that Sirius A:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 2 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members.
- Category A: o points for the lack of big events being organized
- **Category B:** 1 point for organizing workshops
- **Category C**: 0.5 points for exceptional participation in fields such as the organization of introductory activities and specific activities for Master's students
- **Category D:** 1 point for promoting the quality of teaching through regular consultation with the Faculty Board and organizing activities to promote teaching
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- $\circ~$ The 5 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 4 committee grant months.
- DOES receive a bonus of 2 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund Scheme for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 6 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 8 committee grant months.

4.26 Sociëtas

Organization

The S.V. Sociëtas organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund with an allocation of 16 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 316 (316 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 327 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that Sociëtas:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 2.5 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members;
- **Category A:** 1 point for organizing big events
- Category B: 0.5 points for organizing excursions
- **Category C**: 1 point for exceptional participation in fields such as the organization of charitable activities and special activities to support its members, such as a family day
- **Category D:** 1.5 points for publishing a periodical with relevant content and for promoting the quality of teaching through regular consultation with the Faculty Board and the organization of activities to promote teaching
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- $\circ~$ The 7 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 13 committee grant months.
- DOES receive a bonus of 2 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 15 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 17 committee grant months.

4.27 Studiosi Mobilae

Organization

The Studiosi Mobilae organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund Scheme with an allocation of 24 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 771 (771 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 940 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that Studiosi Mobilae:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 3 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members;
- **Category A:** 1.5 points for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 1.5 points for organizing excursions, lectures, and workshops
- **Category C**: 1 point for exceptional participation in fields such as the organization of charitable, introductory, and alumni activities
- **Category D:** 2 points for publishing a periodical with relevant content and for promoting the quality of teaching through regular consultation with the Faculty Board and the organization of activities to promote teaching
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- $\circ~$ The 9.5 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 28 committee grant months.
- DOES receive a bonus of 6 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund Scheme for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 34 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 36 committee grant months.

4.28 T.B.V. Lugus

Organization

The T.B.V. Lugus organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund with an allocation of 34 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 626 (626 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 745 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that TBV Lugus:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 3 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members.
- **Category A:** 1.5 points for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 2 points for organizing excursions, lectures, and workshops
- **Category C**: 0.5 point for exceptional participation in fields such as sustainability and the organization of introductory and alumni activities
- **Category D:** 1.5 points for promoting the quality of teaching through regular consultation with the Faculty Board and other associations, and organizing activities to promote teaching
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- The 9 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 25 committee grant months.
- DOES receive a bonus of 4 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 29 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 31 committee grant months.

4.29 T.M.F.V. Archigenes

Organization

The T.M.F.V. Archigenes organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund with an allocation of 20 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 537 (363 UG + 174 Hanze UAS) out of the 640 submitted student numbers
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that T.M.F.V. Archigenes:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 2 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members.
- **Category A:** 1.5 points for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 1 point for organizing excursions and lectures
- **Category C**: 0.5 points for exceptional participation in fields such as the organization of introductory activities and activities for alumni members
- **Category D:** 1.5 points for promoting the quality of teaching through regular consultation with the Faculty Board and organizing activities to promote teaching
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- The 7 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 13 committee grant months.
- $\circ\,$ DOES receive a bonus of 4 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 17 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 19 committee grant months.

4.30 T.F.V. Professor Francken

Organization

The T.F.V. Professor Francken organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund Scheme with an allocation of 24 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 572 (569 UG + 3 Hanze UAS) out of the 1153 submitted student numbers
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that T.F.V. Professor Francken:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 1.5 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members
- Category A: 1 point for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 1.5 points for organizing excursions and lectures
- **Category C**: 0.5 points for exceptional participation in fields such as the organization of charitable and introductory activities
- **Category D:** 2 points for publishing a periodical with relevant content and for promoting the quality of teaching through regular consultation with the Faculty Board and the organization of activities to promote teaching
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- The 7 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 13 committee grant months.
- $\circ\,$ DOES receive a bonus of 4 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 17 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 19 committee grant months.

4.31 TeMa Study Association

Organization

The TeMa Study Association organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund with an allocation of 18 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 403 (403 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 1104 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that TeMa Study Association:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 2.5 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members.
- **Category A:** 1.5 points for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 1 point for organizing excursions and workshops
- **Category C**: 1 point for exceptional participation in fields such as sustainability and the organization of introductory and alumni activities
- **Category D:** 1.5 points for promoting the quality of teaching through regular consultation with the Faculty Board and organizing activities to promote teaching, such as network moments
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- $\circ~$ The 8 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 19 committee grant months.
- $\circ\,$ DOES receive a bonus of 2 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 21 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 23 committee grant months.

4.32 VESTING

Organization

The VESTING organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund Scheme with an allocation of 32 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 474 (474 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 479 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that VESTING:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 3 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members.
- **Category A:** 1 point for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 1.5 points for organizing excursions and workshops
- **Category C**: 1 point for exceptional participation in fields such as the organization of charitable, introductory, and alumni activities
- **Category D:** 1.5 points for publishing a periodical with relevant content and for promoting the quality of teaching through regular consultation with the Faculty Board and the organization of activities to promote teaching
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- $\circ~$ The 8.5 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 22 committee grant months.
- $\circ\,$ DOES receive a bonus of 4 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 26 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 28 committee grant months.

4.33 Vevonos

Organization

The Vereniging voor notariële studenten (Vevonos) organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund with an allocation of 6 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 250 (250 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 308 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that Vevonos:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members or 50% of the total number of students of the relevant faculty/faculties or degree programme(s)
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 1.5 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members
- **Category A:** 1 point for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 1 point for organizing excursions and workshops, such as visits to firms and an international study project
- **Category C**: 0.5 points for exceptional participation in fields such as activities for first-year students and alumni
- **Category D:** 0.5 points for organizing study-related activities
- Category E: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- The 5 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 4 committee grant months.
- DOES receive a bonus of 2 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund Scheme for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 6 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 8 committee grant months.

4.34 VIP

Organization

The Studievereniging Psychologie Groningen (VIP) organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund Scheme with an allocation of 32 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 1462 (1462 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 1593 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that VIP:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members or 50% of the total number of students of the relevant faculty/faculties or degree programme(s)
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 3 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members.
- **Category A:** 1 point for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 1.5 points for organizing excursions, lectures, and workshops
- **Category C**: 1 point for exceptional participation in fields such as sustainability and the organization of first-year student activities
- **Category D:** 1 point for promoting the quality of teaching through regular consultation with the Faculty Board and organizing teaching-oriented activities
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- $\circ~$ The 8 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 19 committee grant months.
- DOES receive a bonus of 8 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 27 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 29 committee grant months.

4.35 ZaZa

Organization

The Instituutsvereniging Nederlands ZaZa organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund with an allocation of 6 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 80 (80 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 87 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that ZaZa:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members or 50% of the total number of students of the relevant faculty/faculties or degree programme(s)
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 2.5 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members.
- **Category A:** 0.5 points for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 0.5 points for organizing workshops
- **Category C**: 1 point for exceptional participation in fields such as introductory activities, a parents' day and the College Carousel
- **Category D:** 1 point for publishing a periodical with relevant content and promoting the quality of teaching through the organization of activities to monitor and promote teaching quality
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- $\circ~$ The 6 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 7 committee grant months.
- DOES receive a bonus of 2 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund Scheme for a period of 3 years, with an allocation of 9 committee grant months. Bearing in mind the additional 2 compensatory months, the CUOS therefore recommends awarding 11 committee grant months.

5. CUOS recommendation for inclusion of sports clubs in the Graduation Fund

5.1 De Groene Uilen-Moestasj

Organization

The De Groene Uilen-Moestasj organization:

- falls under the category of sports club
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund with an allocation of 19 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 117 (82 UG + 35 Hanze UAS) out of the 165 submitted student numbers
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that De Groene Uilen-Moestasj:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 100 UG or Hanze UAS students who are full, annually paying members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by:
 - *General assessment*: 2.5 points for the policy pursued and broad support for students. However, the policy pursued could be expanded
 - *Category A:* 1 point for practising higher-level competitive sport
 - **Category B:** 2 points for organizing training sessions, tournaments, and excursions
 - *Category C*: 1.5 points for exceptional participation in fields such as charitable events and the organization of first-year student activities
 - *Category D:* 0.5 points for organizing activities to promote member loyalty
 - **Operation of premises**: 0 points for operating its own premises.
 - $\circ~$ The 7.5 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 16 committee grant months.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund Scheme for a period of 2 years, with an allocation of 16 committee grant months. This period of 2 years was determined with the reassessment cycle in mind, which means that sports clubs will have to reapply for inclusion in the Graduation Fund Scheme in 2024-2025.

5.2 G.S.A.V.V. Forward

Organization

The G.S.A.V.V. Forward organization:

- falls under the category of sports club
- is NOT included in the current Graduation Fund
- has a verified membership of 286 (234 UG + 52 Hanze UAS) out of the 356 submitted student numbers
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that G.S.A.V.V. Forward:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 100 UG or Hanze UAS students who are full, annually paying members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by:
 - *General assessment*: 1.5 points for the policy pursued and broad support for students. The policy pursued and its evaluation are unclear; this should be improved next time
 - *Category A:* 0 points for not practising elite sport or higher-level competitive sport
 - *Category B:* 1.5 points for organizing training sessions and tournaments
 - *Category C:* 1 point for exceptional participation in fields such as charitable events, the organization of a Red Cross tournament, and the organization of first-year student activities
 - *Category D:* 0.5 points for organizing activities to promote member loyalty
 - **Operation of premises**: 1.5 points for operating its own premises.
 - $\circ~$ The 6 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 7 committee grant months.
 - $\circ\,$ DOES receive a bonus of 6 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund for a period of 2 years, with an allocation of 13 committee grant months. However, the annual secretarial reports must be more detailed for the next re-evaluation. This period of 2 years was determined with the reassessment cycle in mind, which means that sports clubs will have to reapply for inclusion in the Graduation Fund Scheme in 2024-2025.

5.3 G.S.B.V. Tweeslag

Organization

The G.S.B.V. Tweeslag organization:

- falls under the category of sports club
- is NOT included in the current Graduation Fund
- has a verified membership of 309 (228 UG + 81 Hanze UAS) out of the 433 submitted student numbers
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that G.S.B.V. Tweeslag:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- DOES meet the specific conditions
- DOES have the minimum number of 100 UG or Hanze UAS students who are full, annually paying members
- DOES have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by:
 - *General assessment*: 2.5 points for the policy pursued and broad support for students
 - *Category A:* 1 point for practising higher-level competitive sport
 - *Category B:* 1.5 points for organizing training sessions, tournaments, and a winter sports trip
 - *Category C:* 1 point for exceptional participation in fields such as alumni and the organization of first-year student activities by the introduction committee
 - *Category D:* 0.5 points for organizing activities to promote member loyalty
 - **Operation of premises**: 0 points for not operating its own premises.
 - $\circ~$ The 6.5 points awarded are sufficient for the awarding of 10 committee grant months.
 - DOES receive a bonus of 6 committee grant months based on the administrative burden associated with the size of the organization's membership.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization SHOULD be included in the Graduation Fund for a period of 1 year, with an allocation of 16 committee grant months. The period of 1 year was determined with an eye to the necessary change in articles of association. The organization will thus have to re-apply next year based on the revised articles of association in accordance with Appendix 1, Article 4(C).

6. CUOS recommendation for exclusion from the Graduation Fund Regulations

6.1 ASCI

Organization

The Studievereniging ASCI organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund with an allocation of 6 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 147 (147 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 260 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that ASCI:

- Does NOT meet the general conditions because the organization does not have a significant administrative burden as evidenced by the range of activities organized
- Does NOT meet the specific conditions because the organization does not offer a sufficiently varied range of activities related to the subject field of the degree programme to which the study association is related
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members or 50% of the total number of students of the relevant faculty/faculties or degree programme(s)
- Does NOT have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 1.5 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members
- **Category A:** 0 points for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 1 point for organizing excursions, lectures, and workshops
- **Category C**: 0.5 points for exceptional participation in fields such as introductory and alumni activities
- **Category D:** 1 point for promoting the quality of teaching through regular consultation with the Faculty Board and organizing activities to promote teaching
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- $\circ~$ The 4.5 points awarded are insufficient for the awarding of committee grant months.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization should NOT be included in the Graduation Fund. This is due to the absence of a significant administrative burden as evidenced by the above distribution of points. As described in Article 10.6, Appendix 1 of the Graduation Fund Regulations, an organization must obtain at least 5 points in order to be included in the Graduation Fund Part B. The 4.5 points awarded to ASCI are therefore insufficient to qualify for any committee grant months.

6.2 G.S.H.C. Forward

Organization

The Groninger Studenten Hockey Club Forward (G.S.H.C. Forward) organization:

- falls under the category of sports club
- is NOT included in the current Graduation Fund
- has a verified membership of 319 (258 UG + 61 Hanze UAS) out of the 342 submitted student numbers
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that G.S.H.C. Forward:

- Does NOT meet the general conditions because the organization does not have a significant administrative burden as evidenced by the range of activities organized
- Does NOT meet the specific conditions because the organization does not offer a sufficiently varied range or activities related to the sports in question
- DOES have the minimum number of 100 UG or Hanze UAS students who are full, annually paying members
- Does NOT have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by:
 - *General assessment*: 1 point for the policy pursued and support for students. The annual secretarial reports lack focus points and an evaluation of policy
 - *Category A:* 0 points for not practising elite sport or higher-level competitive sport
 - Category B: 1 point for organizing training sessions and matches
 - *Category C*: 0 points for exceptional participation
 - *Category D:* 0.5 points for organizing activities to promote member loyalty
 - **Operation of premises**: 1.5 points for operating its own premises.
 - $\circ~$ The 4 points awarded are insufficient for the awarding of committee grant months.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization should NOT be included in the Graduation Fund. This is due to the absence of a significant administrative burden as evidenced by the above distribution of points. As described in Article 10.6, Appendix 1 of the Graduation Fund Regulations, an organization must obtain at least 5 points in order to be included in the Graduation Fund Part B. The 4 points awarded to G.S.H.C. Forward are therefore insufficient to qualify for any committee grant months.

6.3 G.T.D. Bernoulli

Organization

The G.T.D. Bernoulli organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund Scheme with an allocation of 12 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 139 (139 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 381 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that G.T.D. Bernoulli:

- Does NOT meet the general conditions because the organization does not have a significant administrative burden as evidenced by the range of activities organized
- Does NOT meet the specific conditions because the organization does not offer a sufficiently varied range of activities related to the subject field of the degree programme to which the study association is related
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members or 50% of the total number of students of the relevant faculty/faculties or degree programme(s)
- Does NOT have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 1.5 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members
- Category A: 0 points for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 1 point for organizing excursions, lectures, and workshops
- **Category C**: o points for exceptional participation
- **Category D:** 1 point for promoting the quality of teaching through teaching consultation and organizing activities to promote teaching
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- $\circ~$ The 4 points awarded are insufficient for the awarding of committee grant months.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization should NOT be included in the Graduation Fund. This is due to the absence of a significant administrative burden as evidenced by the above distribution of points. As described in Article 10.6, Appendix 1 of the Graduation Fund Regulations, an organization must obtain at least 5 points in order to be included in the Graduation Fund Part B. The 4 points awarded to G.T.D. Bernoulli are therefore insufficient to qualify for any committee grant months.

6.4 Study Association IK

Organization

The IK organization, study association for Arts, Culture, and Media:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund Scheme with an allocation of 12 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 149 (149 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 162 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that Study Association IK:

- Does NOT meet the general conditions because the organization does not have a significant administrative burden as evidenced by the range of activities organized
- Does NOT meet the specific conditions because the organization does not offer a sufficiently varied range of activities related to the subject field of the degree programme to which the study association is related
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members or 50% of the total number of students of the relevant faculty/faculties or degree programme(s)
- Does NOT have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 0.5 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members
- Category A: o points for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 0 points for organizing excursions, lectures, and workshops
- **Category C**: o points for the lack of exceptional participation in fields such as sustainability or the organization of charitable activities
- **Category D:** 0.5 points for promoting the quality of teaching through regular consultation with the student assessor and organizing annual activities for maintaining and promoting the degree programme's teaching quality
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- $\circ~$ The 1.5 points awarded are insufficient for the awarding of committee grant months.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization should NOT be included in the Graduation Fund due to the absence of a significant administrative burden as evidenced by the above distribution of points. As described in Article 10.6, Appendix 1 of the Graduation Fund Regulations, an organization must obtain at least 5 points in order to be included in the Graduation Fund Part B. The 1.5 points awarded to Study Association IK are therefore insufficient to qualify for any committee grant months.

6.5 MESA

Organization

The MESA organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- is NOT included in the current Graduation Fund
- has a verified membership of 202 (202 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 222 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that MESA:

- Does NOT meet the general conditions because the organization does not have a significant administrative burden as evidenced by the range of activities organized
- Does NOT meet the specific conditions because the organization does not offer a sufficiently varied range of activities related to the subject field of the degree programme to which the study association is related
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members
- Does NOT have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 2.5 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members.
- **Category A:** 0 points for the lack of big events being organized
- **Category B:** 0 points for the lack of excursions, lectures, and/or workshops being organized
- **Category C**: 0 points for the lack of exceptional participation in fields such as sustainability or the organization of charitable, introduction, or alumni activities
- **Category D:** 0.5 points for promoting the quality of teaching through the organization of activities to promote teaching
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- The 3.5 points awarded are insufficient for the awarding of committee grant months.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization should NOT be included in the Graduation Fund. This is due to the absence of a significant administrative burden as evidenced by the above distribution of points. As described in Article 10.6, Appendix 1 of the Graduation Fund Regulations, an organization must obtain at least 5 points in order to be included in the Graduation Fund Part B. The 3.5 points awarded to MESA are therefore insufficient to qualify for any committee grant months.

6.6 Nexus

Organization

The Nexus Student Association organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- is NOT included in the current Graduation Fund
- has a verified membership of 116 (116 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 132 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time, but not in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that Nexus Student Association:

- Does NOT meet the general conditions because the organization cannot provide any annual secretarial and financial reports

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization should NOT be included in the Graduation Fund It does not meet the general conditions set out in the Regulations governing the Recognition and Re-evaluation of UG and Hanze UAS Student Organizations The CUOS advises the Nexus Student Association organization to submit a new application in two years' time if the requirements of the Graduation Fund can be met.

6.7 STUFF

Organization

The Studievereniging Faculteit Filosofie (STUFF) organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- IS included in the current Graduation Fund Scheme with an allocation of 12 committee grant months
- has a verified membership of 212 (212 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 299 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that STUFF:

- Does NOT meet the general conditions because the organization does not have a significant administrative burden as evidenced by the range of activities organized
- Does NOT meet the specific conditions because the organization does not offer a sufficiently varied range of activities related to the subject field of the degree programme to which the study association is related
- DOES have the minimum number of 75 members or 50% of the total number of students of the relevant faculty/faculties or degree programme(s)
- Does NOT have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 1.5 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members
- **Category A:** 0 points for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 0.5 points for organizing excursions
- **Category C**: 0.5 points for exceptional participation in fields such as sustainability and the organization of alumni activities
- **Category D:** 1 point for publishing a periodical with relevant content and promoting the quality of teaching through the organization of study-related activities
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- $\circ~$ The 4 points awarded are insufficient for the awarding of committee grant months.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization should NOT be included in the Graduation Fund. This is due to the absence of a significant administrative burden as evidenced by the above distribution of points. As described in Article 10.6, Appendix 1 of the Graduation Fund Regulations, an organization must obtain at least 5 points in order to be included in the Graduation Fund Part B. The 4 points awarded to STUFF are therefore insufficient to qualify for any committee grant months.

6.8 S.V. NUTS

Organization

The study association for students of English Language & Culture at the UG (NUTS) organization:

- falls under the category of study association
- is NOT included in the current Graduation Fund
- has a verified membership of 66 (66 UG + 0 Hanze UAS) out of the 69 student numbers submitted
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that NUTS:

- Does NOT meet the general conditions because the organization does not have a significant administrative burden as evidenced by the range of activities organized.
- Does NOT meet the specific conditions because the organization does not offer a sufficiently varied range of activities related to the subject field of the degree programme to which the study association is related. Here, too, NUTS has gained insufficient points.
- Does NOT have the minimum number of 75 members or 50% of the total number of students of the relevant faculty/faculties or degree programme(s) (even after applying the 5% tolerance margin as set out in Chapter 3.4)
- Does NOT have a significant administrative burden, as evidenced by the policy pursued, the range of

activities organized, and student participation in them:

- **General assessment**: 2 points for the policy pursued and for the support offered by the association to its members.
- **Category A:** o points for organizing big events
- **Category B:** 0 points for organizing relevant activities, such as excursions, lectures, and workshops
- **Category C**: o points for exceptional participation
- **Category D:** o points for publishing a periodical with relevant content and promoting the quality of teaching through regular consultation with the Faculty Board
- **Category E**: 0.5 points for organizing get-togethers and other social activities
- The 2.5 points awarded are insufficient for the awarding of committee grant months.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization should NOT be included in the Graduation Fund. With a verified membership of 66, S.V. NUTS does not have the minimum number of 75 members or 50% of the total number of students of the relevant faculty/faculties or degree programme(s) and therefore does not meet the general conditions.

6.9 UniPartners

Organization

The UniPartners organization:

- falls under the category of 'other'
- is NOT included in the current Graduation Fund
- submitted their application in time and in full.

Assessment

The CUOS has assessed that UniPartners:

- DOES meet the general conditions
- Does NOT meet the specific conditions
 - Unipartners Groningen does NOT meet the specific conditions. Although the organization indicated that is was active in the category of advocacy, in fact it mainly focuses on individual service provision. The objectives set out in Unipartners' articles of association and the other information submitted make clear that the organization does not actively focus on student development, but mainly on recruiting students for businesses on a commercial basis. The documents submitted do not indicate that Unipartners Groningen falls under any of the 'other' categories.

Recommendation

The CUOS recommends that this organization should NOT be included in the Graduation Fund, because it is not active in any of the fields included in the category of 'other organizations'.